D-45

Old Woolford Place

Cambridge vicinity

c. 1725-50,c. 1820

Private

The old Woolford place is one of the earliest surviving houses in Dorchester County
with an estimated date of construction during the second quarter of the eighteenth
century. The house was reworked approximately one hundred years after construction
with interior and exterior modifications in the Federal style. The south gable end was
modified with the rebuilding and potential extension of the house as well as the
introduction of south gable end windows on either side of the rebuilt stack. The west
(front) and east (rear) walls retain twelve-over-twelve sash windows. The west wall is
defined by a pair of front doors similar to another Woolford family dwelling known as
John’s Point, also built during the early eighteenth century, which stood on a neck of
land bounded by Woolford Creek and Madison Bay. (See D-223)

Long associated with the Woolford family during the eighteenth and nineteenth
centuries, the exact builder of this early structure has yet to be determined. Buried near
the house on a former part of the farm are John Woolford (1779-1840) and his wife Ally
Woolford (1772-1857). Given that John and Ally (or Allie) Woolford occupied the house
during the second quarter of the nineteenth century, they were responsible for the
nineteenth century modifications to the interior and exterior of the early house as well as
the frame addition to the north. After Ally Woolford’s death in 1857, the property, then
comprising 247 acres, was transferred by John and Caroline Woolford to James, George,

Mary E., and Sarah Ann Woolford in 1861. The farm is identified on the Lake, Griffing,

and Stevenson atlas under the name “Colonel James Woolford,” who held title to around




250 acres at that time. Woolford family ownership was maintained until 1909 when

Eleanor E., Marion, and Rosa Woolford sold the property to Emest and Effie M. Gillis.




Maryland Historical Trust Inventory No.  D-45
Maryland Inventory of
Historic Properties Form

1. Name of Property (indicate preferred name)
historic Woolford Place
other

2. Location

street and number 2124 Silver Goose Lane ___not for publication
city, town Cambridge X_vicinity
county Dorchester

3. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owner

name Frederick and Mary Rebecca Saunders
street and number 2124 Silver Goose Lane telephone
city, town Cambridge state MD zipcode 21613

4. Location of Legal Description
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Dorchester County Clerk of Court liber MLB 715  folio 608

city, town Cambridge tax map 40 tax parcel 34 tax ID number 7-150636

5. Primary Location of Additional Data

Contributing Resource in National Register District

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register
Recorded by HABS/HAER

Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT

Other,

6. Classification

Category ‘Ownership Current Function Resource Count
district public x___agriculture landscape Contributing Noncontributing
X __building(s) x___private commerce/trade recreation/culture buildings

structure both defense religion sites

site domestic social structures

object education transportation objects
funerary work in progress Total
government unknown
health care vacant/not in use Number of Contributing Resources
industry other: previously listed in the Inventory




7. Description Inventory No. D-45

Condition
____excellent ____deteriorated
X__good ___ruins
__ fair ___ altered

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it
exists today.

DESCRIPTION SUMMARY

The old Woolford place is a second quarter of the eighteenth century, story-and-a-half Flemish and
English bond brick dwelling that stands on a prominent site overlooking the northeast branch of Fishing
Creek in between Cambridge and Church Creek, Dorchester County, Maryland. Built on a low
foundation defined by a beveled watertable, the story and-a-half hall/parlor plan brick dwelling extends
to the north by a story-and-a-half wing, which extends further north by a slightly shorter single story
early to mid twentieth century addition. Attached to the east side of the nineteenth century frame
section is a small gable roofed addition that was moved up to the house from somewhere on the
property. The house faces west with the principal gable roofs oriented on a north /south axis. Joing the
house on the creek-front site is a nineteenth century smokehouse, an early twentieth century brick root
cellar with a subterranean section, and a couple of frame storage buildings.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION

The old Woolford house, situated on the northeast branch of Fishing Creek, and located by road at 2123
Silver Goose Lane, is a second quarter of the eighteenth century Flemish and English bond brick house
resting on a low foundation and covered by a steeply pitched wood shingle roof. A beveled watertable
defines the low foundation wall, and the brickwork, formerly displaying a glazed checkerboard brick
pattern, has been painted white. The main block is covered by a steeply pitched wood shingle roof. The
house faces west with the gable roof oriented on a north/south axis.

The west (main) elevation is a four-bay fagade with two center door openings fitted with six-panel
doors, and to each side are twelve-over-twelve sash window framed by beaded edge surrounds. The two
doors are sheltered by a shed roofed screened-in porch. The base of the roof is finished with a boxed
cornice trimmed with bed and crown moldings. The steeply pitched roof is defined by three gable
roofed dormers fitted with six-over-six sash windows.

The south gable end features a rebuilt early nineteenth century corbelled shoulder brick chimney
stack with six-over-six sash windows to each side. The window openings are spanned by jack arches.
When Henry Chandlee Forman visited this site during the second quarter of the twentieth century, he
stated that the east end has been entirely rebuilt and potentially extended. The upper gable end is
pierced by six-pane casement style windows. Fixed in the corner of gable end to each side of the
chimney stack are small louvered vents. The top of the chimney stack is finished with a corbelled cap,
and the edge of the roof is trimmed with a plain bargeboard.

The east (rear) elevation of the main block is three-bays across with an off-center six-panel door and
flanking twelve-over-twelve sash windows. There appears to be a disturbed and rebuilt section of
brickwork between the door and north window. The base of the roof is finished with a boxed cornice,
and three gable roofed dormers are evenly spaced cross the roof slope.
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Continuation Sheet

Number _7_ Page 1

The north gable end of the main block is largely covered by the story-and-a-half frame wing. The
wing is extended to the east by a single-story gable roofed section that was reportedly moved up to the
house from somewhere in the farmyard and converted to a first floor bedroom. The nineteenth century
frame section is served by two stove chimneys, one of which rises against the back of the brick section
and surfaces through the roof against the north face of the wider stack to the main block, thereby
creating a T-shaped chimney top. Another stack rises off-center through the center section.

Attached to the north end of the center nineteenth century wing is an early to mid twentieth century
addition of lower height than the adjacent wing.

The interior of the house was not open to inspection on the first, unannounced visit.

Standing north of the house is a gable roofed frame smokehouse resting on brick piers and covered
with plain weatherboard siding. Dating to the early nineteenth century, the smokehouse is covered by a
medium pitched gable roof. A board-and-batten door pierces the west (main) fagade.

Located next to the smokehouse is a brick and frame root cellar built with a stretcher bond brick
walls above grade. There is a subterranean section for the storage of potatoes and other root vegetables.
The root cellar is covered with a medium pitched roof with flush gable ends and plain boxed cornices
that trim the base of the roof. A board door provides access on the south gable end.




8. Significance Inventory No. D-45

Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below
__ 1600-1699 __ agriculture ___ economics __ health/medicine __ performing arts
__1700-1799 __ archeology __ education __ industry __ philosophy
1800-1899 x architecture __ engineering __invention __ politics/government
x 1900-1999 __art entertainment/ __landscape architecture x religion
__ 2000- __ commerce recreation _law ___ science
___ communications __ ethnic heritage __literature __ social history
__ community planning __ exploration/ __ maritime history ___ transportation
___conservation settlement __ military __other:
Specific dates Architect/Builder

Construction dates

Evaluation for:

National Register Maryland Register X not evaluated

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form — see manual.)

SIGNIFICANCE SUMMARY

The old Woolford place is one of the earliest surviving houses in Dorchester County with an estimated
date of construction during the second quarter of the eighteenth century. The house was reworked
approximately one hundred years after construction with interior modifications in the Federal style. The
south gable end was modified with the rebuilding and potential extension of the house and the
introduction of gable end south windows on either side of the rebuilt stack. The west (front) and east
(rear) walls retain twelve-over-twelve sash windows. The west wall is defined by a pair of front doors
similar to another Woolford family dwelling at John’s Point, also built during the second quarter of the
eighteenth century.

HISTORY AND SUPPORT

Long associated with the Woolford family during the eighteenth and nineteenth centuries, the exact
builder of this early structure has yet to be determined. Buried on a former part of the farm are John
Woolford (1779-1840) and his wife Ally Woolford (1772-1857). Given that John and Ally (or Allie)
Woolford occupied the house until the 1840s and 1850s, they were responsible for the nineteenth
century modifications to the interior and exterior of the story —and-a-half brick house and the addition
of the oldest frame section. After Ally Woolford’s death in 1857, the property, then comprising 247
acres, was transferred from John and Caroline Woolford to James, George, Mary E., and Sarah Ann
Woolford in 1861." The farm is identified on the Lake, Griffing and Stevenson atlas under the name
“Colonel James Woolford” who held title to around 250 acres at that time. Woolford family ownership
was maintained until 1909 when Eleanor E., Marion, and Rosa Woolford sold the property to Ernest and
Effie M. Gillis.”

' Dorchester County Land Record, FTH 5/99, 2 May 1861, Dorchester County Courthouse, Cambridge, Maryland.
* Dorchester County Land Record, CL 35/79, 19 May 1909, Dorchester County Courthouse, Cambridge, Maryland.
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Old Woolford Place
Cambridge vicinity, Dorchester County, Maryland
2124 Silver Goose Road

Map 40, Parcel 34

MLB 715/608 : Mary Rebecca Saunders, Frederick W. Saunders, 111, and
Grace V. Saunders
to
2.17.2006 Mary Rebecca Saunders and Frederick W. Saunders, 111
PLC 147/334 Marjorie L. Smith, widow of the City of Baltimore
to
5.17.1966 Lake R. Vane and wife Agnes S. Vane

3.5055 acres Lot 1 being the same property described according to
a survey of said land made on or about the 16" day of March, 1955
by Lawrence F. Simmons, surveyor

PLC 115/432 Paul R. Brooks, et ux
to
7.22.1959 Russell M. Smith
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RSM 93/366 Carol W. Thomas and others
to
4.28.1955 Paul R. Brooks
RSM 82/43 Jesse T. Cargill and Marian G. Cargill
to
3.31.1953 Carroll W. Thomas, William H. Thomas, Carroll Mace Thomas

one undivided 1/3 interest

RSM 72/201 Frederick H. Walsh and Dorothy E. Walsh
to

5.6.1950 Jesse T. Cargill

RSM 45/60 Ernest A. Gillis and Effie M. Gillis

to

6.21.1941 Frederick H. Walsh and Dorothy E. Walsh
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CL 35/79 Eleanor E. Woolford, Marion Woolford, Rosa Woolford
to
5.19.1909 Ernest A. Gillis and Effie M. Gillis

Dorchester County

“Hull” property

Will Book Last Will and Testament of John Woolford, late of Baltimore City
JWF 1/379

To, wife Caroline
Written
12.8.1890 and then to unmarried daughters
Proved
2.2.1893
1877 Atlas Cambridge District

James Woolford, farmer, 250 acres, nativity, Dorchester Co., 1812

FJH 5/99 John Woolford and Caroline Woolford

to
5.2.1861 James Woolford & others (William Woolford, George Woolford,

Mary E. Woolford, Sarah Ann Woolford

247 acres...being the same land of which John Woolford and Ally
Woolford his wife, late of said county died seized
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Family Cemetery on
Adjacent Property John Woolford, b. 1779, died 9.17.1840
Allie Woolford, b. 1772, died 3.23.1857




9. Major Bibliographical References Inventory No. D-45

Dorchester County Land Records, various volumes, Dorchester County Courthouse.
Dorchester County Probate Records, various volumes, Dorchester County Courthouse.
Personal Interview with Mary Rebecca Saunders, 10.22.2012,

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of surveyed property 3.69 acres
Acreage of historical setting 247 acres +
Quadrangle name Church Creek, MD Quadrangle Quadrangle scale: 1:24,000

Verbal boundary description and justification

The metes and bounds of this property are coincidental with the current boundary of the lot.

11. Form Prepared by

namel/titie Paul B. Touart, Architectural Historian

organization Chesapeake Country Heritage & Preservation date 10.22.2012

street & number Cedar Hill, P. O. Box 5 telephone  410-651-1094
city or town Westover state Maryland 21871

The Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legisiature
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,
1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only
and do not constitute any infringement of individual property rights.

return to: Maryland Historical Trust
DHCD/DHCP
100 Community Place
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023
410-514-7600
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST WORKSHEET

NOMINATION FORM
for the
NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES, NATIONAIL PARKS SERVICE

0ld Woolford Place

AND/QOR HISTORIC:

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
..........................................................

Pig Neck Rd., .5 miles west of Rt. 16, No,3 miles, west 1.4 |
citTyor TowN: miles Tto house, Silver Goose Lane

COUNTY:

......................
.............................................................................................................
.........................................
..............................................................................................................................................................................
....................................................................................................................................
.......

.........................................................................................................................

OWNERSHIP STATUS

(Check One) TO THE PUBLIC
- t— — ——
District 8¢ Building Public Public Acquisition: D Occupie Yes:
Site 1 Structure (24 Private In Process Unoccupied Restricted
Object Both Being Considered Preservation work Unrestricted
in progress X Ne

-

:_R ESENT USE (Check One or More as Appropriate)

Agricyltural Government (] Park [] Transportation

Commercial Industrial B¢ Privote Residence Other (Specity)
Educational Military Religious

1 Entertainment Museum Scientific

1 OWNEROF PROPERYY -~ o oo

WNER'S NAME:

Mrs. Agnes S. Vane

STREET AND NUMBER: —

Box 222, RFD 1

| - -

CITY OR TOWN: STATE:
....... R C.‘n brﬁi‘dﬁ#*ﬂm“‘ T e e A A e A J- M,a 1 E . d n N . 2 1 6 1 3
5. LOCATION OF LEGALDESCRIPTION .~ . o0 coo. a0 e e e

‘_-_-- L ) AP LI L R

COURTHOUSE, REGISTRY OF DEEDS, ETC:

Courthouse

S EE INSTRL).'TlONS

..........................................................
-

STREET AND NUMBER:

High Street

CITY OR TOWN: STATE

Cambridge _ Maryland 21613
itle Reference of Current Deed (Book & Pg, #): 147/3%3L —
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DATE OF SURVEY: Federal State County Local
DEPOSITORY FOR SURVEY RECORDS: B
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Excellent E Good Fair Deteriorated i .

CONDITION B iorate Ruins | Umxpoltdl
(Check One) (Check One)

X Altered Uncltered Moved B4 Original Site

F‘

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT 2 4D ORIGINAL (If known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

It is reputedely built in 1675 because it has the same
type of brick work as 0ld Trinity Church. The house is a
three bay long, one and one-half story brick structure, with
a one and one-half story, two bay long addition, with another
smaller one story wing addition. The two earliest portions
are the first two mentioned.

On the west facade, which looks over a harbour of the
north east bank of Fishing Creek, the house is laid in Flemish
bond with glazed headers. It has two front doors, with a
window on each end. - The facade arrangement is similar to
Genesar and Makepeace. It 1is built very close to the ground,
but does have a champhered water table.

The sash on the first floor windows have 12/12 panes,
but very small. The original or very early paneled shutters
are in place and are hung on "H" hinges. The original frames
are in place as well as the cornice. On both sides it has
a very steep "A" roof with three dormers on each side of the
roof. The back side of the house, which is the approach side,
has one door and two windows. The one door entering into the
stair passage. The back of the house is laid in English bond.
The north gable, which sticks up above the story and a half
wing, is laid in Flemish bond and a portion of that is exposed
so that you can see the glazed headers. The rest of the house
1s painted. |

The south gable appears to have collapsed and was re
constructed in the 19th century.

On the east side of the kitchen wing, there has been add-
ed a very small building which is now used as a bedroom. The
west side of the kitchen wing has irregular fenestration be-
cause it has been changed. There is a chimney which butts
up against the c¢himney of the main portion of the house and
actually forms a T shaped chimney. There is also another
chimney in the center of the kitchen, which is north of the

preceeding chimney.
Inside the floor plan is like Makepeace and Genesar, 1it

is composed of a central stair passage with a room on each sidg.

The room on the north or living room, is seperated from the
stair hall by a vertical board partition. The 1living room
has a chair rail and a mantel which appears to date from the

second quarter of the 19th century. The stair is a very simplg

stair, it raises in two flights, one up to a platform and the
other from the platform to the hall, actually doubling back
on itself. The stair handrail has a nearly round profile,
which is typical of the 1830's. The dining room has a fire-
place with a mantel of approximately the same period. On the
right side or east side of the fireplace is a cupboard, and
according to Mrs. Vane, there is a space behind the cupboard
where the children used to be hidden in case of an Indian
attack. |

Upstairs has the same floor plan, there are two chambers.
There is also a small room at the head of the stairs, which

3 3
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SEE INSTK L CTIONS

e — e re—— e S |
AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)
Abor iginal E ducation ) Political Urban Planning
] Prehistoric ] Engineering Religion/Phi. Other (Specity) |
Historic () Industry losophy - — e
] Agriculture ] invention (] Science — —
B8 Architecture Landscape Sculpture — ———
Art Architecture [J Secial/Human- ——
[[] Commerce [ ] Literature itarian — _—
(] Communications [ Military Theoter
I Conservation [} Music Transportation
‘< - e . : —

SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known)

Pre-Columbion 16th Century 18th Century 20th Century

]5'}' c.“'ury l?fh C.n'ury ]9th C.ﬂtury

i I e “

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The building is one of the best houses of the typical
one and one-half story form constructed throughout Dorchester
County during the early period of its history. Besides |
being brick, it is also of interest because it has such
an unusual facade, with two entrances. There are many
unanswered questions concerning the age of the building,
since the majority of the interior is from the second quarter
of the 19th century and the reputed date of construction is
17/th century. More research should be undertaken on the
history of the building.

#7 DESCRIPTION (continued)

is now the bath. The two chambers are seperated from the
hall by a vertical board wall, as is the one at the head of
the stairs.

The wing is composed of two rooms. The one closest
the dining room is a combination dining-living room. It has
a fireplace which is back to back with the dining room fire-
place, and that wall is composed of vertical board paneling.
There is also a stair, in the east corner, with a paneled
door on the stair. The door looks to be very early, perhaps
from the 1720's or 30's. The rest of the paneling appears
to be early 19th century. From a seam in the wall, there
appears to have been a passage on the west side of the room,
which has been eliminated. This arrangement was found in
the kitchen wing of Willow Grove, Caroline County, as well
as the Young house in Dorchester.

The house is one of the few remaining one and one-half
story brick houses in Dorchester County.

PSS =709



1934, (Woolford House).

Laskowski Paper, 1955, p. 141.

Forman, H.C., Early Manor and Plantation Houses of Maryland,
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LATITUDE AND LONGITUDE COORDINATES
DEFINING A RECTANGLE LOCATING THE PROPERTY

el NOUSIOPER BT = e -;-';‘.'- '..;.-'-'-‘;':';‘;;..'-.'-.‘.‘-'-'-'-'-'-'-'-'='-'_-_'ii-'-‘~'-'-'- LT L
LATITUDE AN LONGITUDE COORDINATES
DEFINING THE CENTER POINT OF A PROPERTY
OF LESS THAN TEN ACRES

Tl e e e ._.‘-..--

1GORNER:[ LATITUDE LONGITUDE LATITUDE LONGITUDE
——-q [—— >
Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds | Degrees Minutes Seconds
NW o ’ » o ? » O ’ » o ’ »
NE [ ] [ [ ] [ ] »
SE o * » o ’ »
—S_w o ’ - I o ’ » |
APPROXIMATE ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY:

zAcreage Justification:

. District 7, Tax Map 40, p. 3.4.

1
|

NAME AND TITLE:

Michael Bourne, Architectural Consultant

ORGANIZATION

Maryland Historical Trust

STREET AND NUMBER:

| Shaw House, 21 State Circle

CiTY OR TOWN:

Annapolils e
T“EStagg ILLiaison Officer Review:

STATE

VATV 1 AaNc ()

(Office Use Only)

Significance of this property is:

State Local

National

Signature
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